
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                       
  
I. MINUTES       

A. November 18, 2010             
 
II. AUDIT REPORT – Brady Martz (Information)  
 
III. PERSLink Update – Sharon (Information)  
 
IV. GROUP INSURANCE 

A. Prime Therapeutics Response (PBM Audit) – (Information)  
B. Health Plan – Sparb (Board Action) 
C. Life Insurance Bid – Kathy (Board Action)  

 
V. RETIREMENT 

A. Asset Liability Study – Callan (Information) 
B. Retirement Plan – Sparb (Board Action) 
C. Segal Contract – Sparb (Board Action)  

 
VI. DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

A. Investment Options – Bryan (Information)  
 
VII. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Audit Committee Minutes (August 18) – (Information)  
B. Deferred Compensation Hardship Withdrawal - Kathy (Board Action)  
C. Flex Comp Appeals – Kathy (Board Action)  

1. Appeal Case #6 
2. Appeal Case #7 

D. Retiree Group Health Appeal – Appeal Case #5 – Kathy (Board Action) 
E. SIB Agenda 
 
 

 
Any individual requiring an auxiliary aid or service must contact the NDPERS ADA 
Coordinator at 328-3900, at least 5 business days before the scheduled meeting. 

 
 
 

Bismarck Location: 
ND Association of Counties 

1661 Capitol Way 
Fargo Location: 

BCBS, 4510 13th Ave SW 

Time: 8:30 AMDecember 21, 2010



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  December 13, 2010 
 
TO:   NDPERS Board 
 
FROM:  Jamie 
 
SUBJECT:  2010 Audit Report Presentation 
 
 
Included is the 2010 audit report for the PERS agency.  John Mongeon and Patrick 
Brown from Brady Martz & Associates will be at the Board meeting to review the report 
with you and answer any questions you may have.  This report was reviewed by the 
Audit Committee at its November meeting. 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb       
 
DATE:   December 15, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  PERSLink Update 
 
 
Sharon Schiermeister will be at the Board meeting to give an update on our  
PERSLink business system. 
 
 
 
   

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb       
 
DATE:   December 15, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  Prime Therapeutics 
 
 
Representatives of Prime Therapeutics will be at the next meeting to review with you their 

observations on the recent audit conducted by TRICAST.  I have attached for your 

reference a copy of the summary audit report that was reviewed at the last meeting.   

 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb       
 
DATE:   December 15, 2010 
 
SUBJECT:  Health Plan 
 
 
Executive Budget 
 
The Executive Budget for 2011-2013 provided the following: 
 

Area Executive Recommendation 

Health The compensation package continues full health insurance coverage 
for state employees and their families. The total cost for health 
insurance is $886.62 per month per employee. This is a $60.96 or a 
7.4 percent increase over last biennium. 

 
The premium increase for the state (not including all of Higher Education) according to the 
executive budget cost $9,063,550.  This support for the plan is truly appreciated and will 
allow us to conserve funds so the premium increase required for the 2013-15 biennium will 
likely be in the single digit range with a “buy down”. 
 
Premium Reprojection 
 
At the September meeting I had recommended and we decided not to have a BCBS 
reproject our premium in February as they have done the last several biennium’s since we 
felt that the executive budget could recommend no premium increase.  If we had a 
reprojection in that environment, one outcome could be lower premiums than the 2011-13 
than for 2009-2011 biennium and according to Deloitte projections this could create a 
serious shortfall for the 2013-15 biennium.  However, since the executive budget did fund 
the increase, which alleviates our concern and since some are expecting this reprojection, I 
would like to recommend that we proceed with it and have BCBS do it February. 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



Page | 2 
 

Staff Recommendation 
 
Have BCBS reproject the health premiums in February. 

 
Health Strategies 
 
In the BCBS Bid they offered and recommended two programs: 
 

1. Accordant Disease Management Program 
2. Triessent Specialty Pharmacy Program 

 
The cost for these programs is included in the BCBS administrative fee which was approved 
in the executive budget.   
 
Accordant 
 
Accordant provides disease management services for complex and rare conditions.  This 
was added to the plan in August of 2010. At this point we need to approve continuing this 
program for 2011-2013 biennium.  The 16 diseases Accordant manages are amyotrophic 
lateral sclerosis (ALS), chronic inflammatory demyelinating poyradiculoneuropathy (CIDP), 
crohn’s disease, systic fibrosis, dermatomyosistis, gaucher disease, hemophilia, lupus, 
multiple sclerosis, myasthenia gravis, parkinson’s disease, polymyosistis, rheumatoid 
arthritis, scleroderma, seizure disorders and sickle cell anemia. 
 
Accordant offers personalized counseling and health evaluations to identify potential 
complications, a 24/7 nurse line, member education, and self management techniques, and 
guidance finding resources.  The company focuses on proactive care to avoid hospital 
admissions and crisis.   Accordant nurses and social workers encourage member self-
monitoring and management of disease-related symptoms and monitor compliance with 
current standards of care for the condition.  
 
Triessent 
 
Triessent is Prime Therapeutics’ specialty pharmacy program.  The program is designed to 
help improve the health of members with specialty conditions (like rheumatoid arthritis, 
hepatitis C, and multiple sclerosis).  Triessent offers safe and efficient medication delivery, 
member education, and guidance from pharmacists and nurses experienced with specialty 
conditions.  Triessent offers modestly deeper discounts on specialty medication than retail 
pharmacy networks. 
 
Cost Impact:  Prime Therapeutics estimates that exclusive use of Triessent Specialty 
Pharmacy Program services would yield approximately $140,000 in annual savings.  
Savings would be lower as a preferred program.  
 
Member Impact:  In 2009, approximately 310 NDPERS members filed claims for a 
specialty medication.  Under an exclusive specialty pharmacy program, these members 
would be required to obtain their medications through Triessent.  Currently, most NDPERS 



Page | 3 
 

members use retail pharmacies for their specialty medication needs, so the use of a 
specialty pharmacy involves a different member experience.  Some employer groups have 
experienced member disruption implementing the Triessent program (transferring 
prescriptions, arranging delivery schedules) when they entered into an exclusive, fixed start 
date with Triessent.  Member disruption issues may be avoided initially in a voluntary 
program. 
 
Administrative Considerations: Specialty medications are the fastest growing segment of 
the pharmaceutical market, both in terms of new products and inflationary pricing.  While 
specialty medications account for only a very small number of claims filed by a very small 
number of members, the specialty class of drugs is driving the overall pharmacy cost trend.  
In 2009, NDPERS’ specialty medication PMPM trend was 17%.  The non-specialty 
medication PMPM trend was a deflationary -0.7%.  It appears that managing these products 
apart from the general drug benefit would be beneficial. 
 

Staff Recommendation 
 
Approve these programs. Have the Triessent program incorporated into the plan as a 
preferred provider, not exclusive, with a possible incentive to encourage utilization.  
Continue the Accordant program for 2011-13.    

 
Bill # 103 
 
This bill provides for the following: 
 

LC Bill 
Number 

 
Sponsor 

 
Bill Summary 

10103.0100 Rep. Carlson A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-52.1 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to health savings accounts under the uniform 
group insurance program.  

 
The above bill received a favorable recommendation from the Legislative Employee Benefits 
Committee.  However as noted in the technical review the only way this can be implemented 
under federal law is for us to have a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP).  The review also 
noted that as drafted the bill does not authorize PERS set this up and is silent on many of 
considerations that would need to be addressed including: 
 

 
 



Page | 4 
 

Consequently, if passed in the present form, PERS would not be able to implement the bill, 
in other words as written it has no effect.  Aaron can review this with you. These concerns 
were sent to Representative Carlson during the interim but no amendments were offered 
during the committee’s consideration.  I have also been in contact with Chair of the 
Legislative Employee Committee and I have offered to travel to Fargo to help clarify the 
intent.  However, as presently written, the bill would have no effect on PERS since you 
would not be able to implement a Health Savings Account without further authority and 
direction.  If the bill is amended, I will review it with you to see if you have any suggestions 
or would like to take a position on it.   
 
Rx Program 
 
Attachment #1 is information from BCBS about the change that will be occurring in the Rx 
network.  BCBS will review this at the next meeting. 
 
Miscellaneous Rewrite Items 
 
Attachment #2 are some miscellaneous SPD rewrite changes for 2011-13.  These are no 
costs and have been approved by the Insurance Commissioner.  If you have any questions, 
representatives of BCBS will be at the meeting.   



4510 13th Avenue South
Fargo, North Dakota 58121

Noridian Mutual Insurance Company 

BlueCross BlueShield  
of North Dakota
An independent licensee of the  
Blue Cross & Blue Shield Association

Dear Group Leader:

As part of our commitment to keep premiums as low as possible—while preserving access to services for our 
members—we have made the decision to transition the pharmacy benefit portion of our health insurance 
business from the Prime National Network to the Prime Select Network, effective February 1, 2011. This 
change in pharmacy networks has the potential to save $6 million annually in pharmacy claims.  

Because nearly all 180 North Dakota pharmacies already participate in the Prime Select Network and efforts 
were made to minimize the impact to 56 rural North Dakota pharmacies, we do not expect any disruption for 
our members because of this transition. Our members have been asking for this type of cost-cutting program, 
and this decision brings discounts that are comparable to what is available across the nation.

Facts about the transition from the Prime National to Prime Select Network for all BCBSND members:

•	 This was a business decision supporting our commitment to keep premiums as low as possible. It is 
projected to save $6 million annually.

•	 Key employer groups have been asking for this type of cost-cutting program, and the Prime Select 
network offers discounts that are comparable to what is available across the nation.

•	 Making this change now allows us to answer our customer demand for cost-cutting programs while 
avoiding or delaying a move to an online order option, which we know would be more devastating to  
all North Dakota pharmacies.

•	 Our rural pharmacies will not be impacted by this transition. Out of the 180 retail pharmacies operating 
in North Dakota, 56 are considered rural, with two or fewer pharmacies available to the community. 
These rural pharmacies account for about 14 percent of BCBSND member claim volume.

•	 Most North Dakota pharmacies—both urban and rural—are already contracted with both Prime  
National and Prime Select, and are already processing Prime Select claims for neighboring Blue Cross 
Blue Shield plans.

Please contact your Group Benefits Consultant or Service Representative with any questions.

Sincerely,

Jack Easton,
AVP, Marketing 
 

29314329 (2051) 12-10



Q&A about the Select Network Transition

When will BCBSND change to the Prime Select Network?
On February 1, 2011, BCBSND will change from the Prime National to the Prime Select Network.

What is the difference between the Prime National and Prime Select Networks?
Both of these retail pharmacy networks are maintained by Prime, and most pharmacies in the U.S.,  
including North Dakota, have contracts in both networks. Prime Select has modestly larger discounts on 
brand medications (approximately 3 percent) and lower dispensing fees (approximately $1) per prescription. 

What is the financial impact of this change?
Prime currently reimburses out-of-state pharmacies under Prime Select contracts and North Dakota 
pharmacies for member claims under Prime National contracts. Transitioning the North Dakota pharmacies 
to the Prime Select contracts will reduce pharmacy reimbursement for BCBSND member claims by 
approximately $6 million per year.

What prompted BCBSND to make this transition?
This decision was driven by the market and our members. Several major groups expect that we continue to 
find ways to impact costs. This transition to the Prime Select network allows us to be competitive with the 
national discounts offered by a PBM.

Does this change to Prime Select affect all BCBSND members?
Yes, the entire BCBSND health plan will be moving to the Prime Select Network, which provides discounts 
comparable to what other patients across the nation are being offered.

How does this change impact North Dakota pharmacies?
There are 180 retail pharmacies in North Dakota, and most already have contracts with both the Prime Select 
and Prime National networks. 

The 56 rural pharmacies —with rural defined as having two or fewer pharmacies in the community—will not 
see any change to their reimbursements. These 56 pharmacies account for approximately 14 percent of total 
BCBSND claim volume.

The remaining pharmacies will now be reimbursed at the Prime Select rates, which we know will have 
an impact on their margins. National trends and information suggest that Prime Select network rates are 
competitive and acceptable to most North Dakota pharmacies.

The decision holds off our other option in responding to market demand—online ordering—which would be 
devastating to all North Dakota pharmacies.

How were North Dakota pharmacies notified of the transition?
Both Prime and BCBSND distributed a notice to the North Dakota pharmacies affected by this transition. 
Because these pharmacies were already participating in the Prime Select Network, no action is necessary. 



Page 1

NDPERS SPD 
CHANGES

Page/Section Comments Deletion/Changes

RewriteChanges 
being made by 
BCBSND for 2011 

Pg. 60 - Substance 
Abuse Facility

The Definition for Substance Abuse 
Facility has been updated

An institution or a distinct part of an 
institution providing medically monitored 
inpatient detoxification delivered by 
nursing or medical professionals or 
rehabilitation treatment for alcohol or other 
drug abuse. (NO COST)

Pg. 17, 2.3 - b 
Transplant Services

The list of specific conditions for bone 
marrow transplants has been removed.

Bone marrow/stem cell transplants with 
related services and supplies are covered 
subject to medical policy or medical 
guidelines.  Please contact BCBSND to 
ensure benefits are available for specific 
transplant procedures.  In administering 
this Benefit Plan, as technology changes, 
medical policy or medical guidelines for 
these services may be modified as 
approriate.(NO COST)

Pg. 55, 8.17 Cost 
Sharing Amounts Language Change

Under certain circumstances, if BCBSND 
pays amounts to the Health Care Provider 
that are the Member's responsibility, such 
as Deductibles, Copayments or 
Coinsurance Amounts, BCBSND may 
collect such amounts directly from the 
Member.  The Member agrees that 
BCBSND has the right to collect such 
amounts from the Member.(NO COST)



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Kathy & Sparb       
 
DATE:   December 13, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  RFP for Group Life & AD&D Insurance Plan  
   
We have included for your review, a draft copy of the Group Life & AD& D plan RFP provided by our 
consultant GRS.  It has been reviewed by staff and our changes are included in the document.  
Proposers are required to submit a bid to provide for fully insured services for eligible active and 
retired state and university and participating political subdivision employees and their dependents.   
 
Following are the key dates for the proposal process: 
 
  

Date Activity 

January 10, 2011 RFP is issued.  

February 10, 2011 Written questions regarding proposals must be received by NDPERS no 
later than 5:00 p.m. (CDT).  

February 18, 2011 NDPERS posts responses to all questions received. 

March 1, 2011 Proposals must be received by NDPERS no later than 5:00 p.m. (CDT). 

March 24, 2011 PERS Board review of proposals. 

April 21, 2011 Finalist interviews and Best and Final Offers due, if determined necessary 
by the PERS Board on March 24th. 

No later than May 2011 Selection and award of contract by NDPERS. 

July 1, 2011 Effective Date of Coverage. 
 
 
Attached is a list of vendors which includes our current vendor, Prudential, those GRS is 
recommending, as well as any that have requested to be on our bid list. 
 
 
Board Action Requested  
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



Life/AD&D Vendor List 

Company Name Contact Name Contact Phone Contact E-Mail 
Aetna Louie Heerwagen (214) 200-8923 HeerwagenL@aetna.com 
Aetna Cyndy Welken-Place (701) 258-6040 cynthia_welkenplace@us.aflac.com 
Asset Management Group  Jim Kasper (701) 232-6250 jmkasper@amg-nd.com   
Cigna David Evans (972) 863-5140 David.Evans@cigna.com  
Colonial Life Conrad Suechting (701) 321-0517 conrad.suechting@coloniallife.com  
United HealthCare (UHC) John Bass (210) 478-4980 John_Bass@uhc.com 
Sun Life Financial 
 

Steve Earp (972) 934-3871 ext. 224 Steven.Earp@sunlife.com  

Prudential (Incumbent) Julie Lung (877) 693-5316 julie.lung@prudential.com 
 

MetLife Micah Howard (972) 246-1630 
 

mhoward2@metlife.com  

The Standard Darin Barthlow (972) 943-2903 
 

dbarthlo@standard.com  

ING Jeff Flanagan (972) 419-5766 Jeff.Flanagan@us.ing.com 
Unum Rob Larson (972) 892-1444 RLarson@unum.com 
Reliance Standard Amy Savoie (800) 261-0269 x 1308  Amy.Savoie@rsli.com  
Hartford Terry Gaunt 

Kathleen Miller 
(469) 287-1091 
(469) 287-1052 

Terry.Gaunt@hartfordlife.com  
Kathleen.Miller1@hartfordlife.com 

Dearborn National Damien Dreis (206) 484-0056 damien_dreis@dearbornnational.com 
Guardian Life Insurance Company Lisa Kramer (972) 458-1032 Lisa_d_kramer@glic.com 

Surequotewro@glic.com  
Principal Financial Alan Russell 

Michelle Clements 
(877) 261-1671 Russell.alan@principal.com 

Clements.Michelle@principal.com  
Mutual of Omaha Ryan Walton 

Sinaro Reang 
(402) 415-7739 
(800) 773-1306 

Ryan.Walton@mutualofomaha.com 
Sinaro.Reang@mutualofomaho.com  

 

 

mailto:HeerwagenL@aetna.com�
mailto:cynthia_welkenplace@us.aflac.com�
mailto:jmkasper@amg-nd.com�
mailto:David.Evans@cigna.com�
mailto:conrad.suechting@coloniallife.com�
mailto:John_Bass@uhc.com�
mailto:Steven.Earp@sunlife.com�
mailto:julie.lung@prudential.com�
mailto:mhoward2@metlife.com�
mailto:dbarthlo@standard.com�
mailto:Jeff.Flanagan@us.ing.com�
mailto:RLarson@unum.com�
mailto:Amy.Savoie@rsli.com�
mailto:Terry.Gaunt@hartfordlife.com�
mailto:Kathleen.Miller1@hartfordlife.com�
mailto:damien_dreis@dearbornnational.com�
mailto:Lisa_d_kramer@glic.com�
mailto:Surequotewro@glic.com�
mailto:Russell.alan@principal.com�
mailto:Clements.Michelle@principal.com�
mailto:Ryan.Walton@mutualofomaha.com�
mailto:Sinaro.Reang@mutualofomaho.com�


 
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System 

 
Request for Proposal 

Group Life and AD&D Coverages  

RFP Issue Date: January 10, 2011 

Proposal Due Date: March 1, 2011 

Proposed Effective Date: July 1, 2011 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION 

   

1. Background and Objectives………………………………………………………….. 1 

2. Definitions……………………………………………………………………………. 1 

3. Mandatory Requirements…………………………………………………………….. 3 

4. Key Dates in the Proposal Process……………………………………………………. 3 

5. Current Enrollment and Demographics………………………………………………. 4 

6. General Information on the Life and AD&D Plan……………………………………. 4 

 6.1. Plan Design……………………………………………………………………… 4 

 6.2. Eligibility Provisions…………………………………………………………….. 7 

 6.3. Contractual Obligation…………………………………………………………... 8 

 6.4. Compliance……………………………………………………………………… 8 

 6.5. Term of Contract………………………………………………………………… 8 

 6.6. General…………………………………………………………………………... 9 

   

SECTION 2: ELIGIBILITY AND SELECTION CRITERIA 

   

1. Minimum Requirements……………………………………………………………... 10 

2. Selection Criteria…………………………………………………………………….. 10 

   

SECTION 3: GENERAL INFORMATION 

   

1. Non-Disclosure Agreement…..………………………………………………………. 11 

2. Inquiries Regarding Specifications…………………………………………………... 11 

3. Rules and Regulations…………..……………………………………………………. 12 

4. Confidentiality of Trade Secret, Proprietary, Commercial, and Financial 

Information…………………………………………………………………………… 12 

5. Addenda, Amendments, and Clarifications to the RFP……………….……………… 12 

6. Order of Responses…………………………………………………………………... 13 

7. Submission of Proposals……………………………………………………………... 13 

8. Acceptance of Proposals……………………………………………………………... 14 

9. Non-Responsive Proposals…………………….…………………………………….. 14 

10. References………………..………………………………………………………….. 14 

11. Member Identification………………………………………………………….......... 14 

12. Certification…………………………………….……………………………….......... 14 

13. Waiver………………………………………………………………………………… 15 

14. Additional Information from Responding Organizations.…………………………….. 15 

15. Modification………………………………………………………………………….. 15 

16. Solicitation……….…………………………………………………………………… 15 

17. News Release….……………………………………………………………………… 15 

18. Change Required by Statute, Regulation, Court Orders, or Program 

Appropriations………………………………………………………………………… 15 

19. Financial Background.………………………………………………………………... 16 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

SECTION 4: CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

   

1. Introduction…………………………………………………………………………… 17 

2. Failure to Comply…………..…………………………………………………………. 17 

3. Compliance with ERISA……………………………………………………………… 17 

4. Taxpayer I.D. Number………………………………………………………………… 17 

5. Authorized Signatures………………………………………………………………… 18 

6. Prohibited Interest…………………………………………………………………….. 18 

7. Required Contract Provisions…………………………………………………………. 18 

   

SECTION 5: ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

   

1. Eligibility / Participant Premium Billing Services…………………………………….. 19 

2. Reporting……………………………………………………………………………..... 19 

3. Plan Booklets………………………………………………………………………….. 19 

4. Functional Relationships……………………………………………………………..... 19 

5. Applicable Law………………………………………………………………………... 19 

   

SECTION 6: FORMAT OF PROPOSAL 

   

1. Cover Letter…………………………………………………………………………… 20 

2. Table of Contents……………………………………………………………………… 20 

3. Attachment C: Technical Proposal..……………………………………………............ 21 

 3.1. Attachment C-1: Minimum Requirements…………………………………… 21 

 3.2. Attachment C-2: Offeror Information……………………………………….. 21 

 3.3. Attachment C-3: Current and Proposed Plan Design………………………… 21 

 3.4. Attachment C-4: Administrative Requirements……………………………… 21 

 3.5. Attachment C-5: General Questionnaire…………………………………….. 22 

 3.6. Attachment C-6: Subcontractor Questionnaire………………………………. 22 

 3.7. Attachment C-7: Deviations………………………………………………..... 22 

 3.8. Attachment C-8: Signature Page……………………………………………... 22 

 3.9. Response Attachments……………………………………………………...... 22 

6.4. Attachment D: Financial Proposal……………………………………………………... 23 

 4.1. Attachment D-2: Financial Requirements……………………………………. 23 

 4.2. Attachment D-3: Financial Questionnaire…………………………………… 23 

 4.3. Attachment D-4: Explanations………………………………………………. 23 

 4.4. Attachment D-5: Financial Proposal……………………………………........ 24 

 4.5. Attachment D-6: Premium Breakdown (Retention Exhibit)………………… 24 

 4.6. Attachment D-7: Signature Page…………………………………………….. 24 

 4.7. Response Attachments……………………………………………………..... 24 

   

APPENDICES 

   

 Appendix A – Model State Contract…………………………………………………… 26 

 Appendix B – Non-Disclosure Agreement…………………………………………….. 33 

 Appendix C – Current Life and AD&D Summary Booklet…………………………… 35 

 Appendix D – Rate/Experience History……………………………………………….. 36 



 

1 

 

I. INTRODUCTION 

1. Background and Objectives 

The North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (NDPERS) desires to provide Life 

and Accidental Death & Dismemberment (AD&D) benefits to all eligible active and retired 

state and university and participating political subdivision employees and their dependents.  

NDPERS is soliciting proposals for coverage to be effective July 1, 2011.   

NDPERS is seeking fully insured proposals for its group Life and AD&D insurance plans. 

The current benefit for Basic Life and AD&D is $1,300. The State pays $0.28 per eligible 

active participant for this coverage.  Retirees pay $4.32 per eligible participant (both early 

retirees and retirees age 65 and older) for the same $1,300 benefit. Supplemental Life and 

AD&D, Spouse Supplemental Life, and Dependent Supplemental Life are age rated 

based on the employee’s age and are entirely employee paid. The effective date of 

coverage is July 1, 2011. All premium rates must be guaranteed for the July 1, 2011 – June 

30, 2013 state biennium. 

Presently, all coverages are combined for experience rating purposes. Dividends (if 

applicable) can be paid to NDPERS. For the purposes of comparison for this RFP, we are 

requesting both experience rated and a pooled quotes. 

Employees can elect to increase coverage during the annual enrollment conducted each fall. 

While during the initial (new hire) enrollment period, there are guaranteed issue 

amounts for the supplemental coverages, all requests for increases in coverage at 

annual enrollment are subject to proof of good health. Any increase, if approved, will be 

effective the later of the dates the coverage is approved or January 1. 

2. Definitions  

For purposes of this RFP, the following abbreviations or terms have the meanings indicated 

below: 

 

 “Actively at Work” means the individual is performing the material duties of his/her 

own occupation at the employer’s usual place of business.  The individual is 

considered Actively at Work if absence is due to a regularly scheduled day off, 

holiday or vacation day. 

 

 “AD&D” – means Accidental Death and Dismemberment. 

 

 “BAFO” means Best and Final Offer; a BAFO may be requested in order to permit 

written revisions to an Offeror’s initial proposal. 

 

 “Contractor” – The Offeror selected pursuant to this RFP will be referred to as this. 

 

 “Covered Lives” means each individual enrolled in the plan. 

 



 

2 

 

 “Eligible Dependent” – a dependent of the Subscriber who qualifies for membership 

under this Benefit Plan in accordance with the requirements specified below:  

1. The Subscriber's spouse under a legally existing marriage between persons of 

the opposite sex.  

 

2. The Subscriber's or the Subscriber's living, covered spouse's unmarried 

children under the age of 23 years who are financially dependent on the 

Subscriber or the Subscriber's spouse. Children are considered under age 23 

until the end of the month in which the child becomes 23 years of age. The term 

child or children includes:  

 

a. Children for whom the Subscriber or the Subscriber's living, covered 

spouse are required by court order to provide health benefits.  

 

b. Children beyond the age of 23 who are incapable of self support because of 

mental retardation or physical handicap that began before the child attained 

age 23 and who are primarily dependent on the Subscriber or the 

Subscriber's spouse for support. Coverage for such a disabled child will 

continue for as long as the child remains unmarried, disabled and the 

Subscriber's dependent for federal income tax purposes.  
 

 “Eligible Employee” – means every permanent active employee, who is employed by 

a governmental unit, as that term is defined in section 54-52-01. "Eligible employee" 

includes members of the legislative assembly, judges of the supreme court, paid 

members of state or political subdivision boards, commissions, or associations, 

full-time employees of political subdivisions, elective state officers as defined by 

subsection 2 of section 54-06-01, and disabled permanent employees who are receiving 

compensation from the North Dakota workforce safety and insurance fund.  As used 

in this subsection, "permanent employee" means one whose services are not limited in 

duration, who is filling an approved and regularly funded position in a governmental 

unit, and who is employed at least twenty hours per week and at least twenty weeks 

each year of employment. For purposes of sections 54-52.1-04.1, 54-52.1-04.7, 

54-52.1-04.8, and 54-52.1-11, "eligible employee" includes retired and terminated 

employees who remain eligible to participate in the uniform group insurance program 

pursuant to applicable state or federal law. 

 

 “Incumbent” – the current provider of the services sought through this RFP. (These 

services are currently being provided by Prudential.) 

 

 “Eligible Retiree ” – means a retiree who has accepted a periodic distribution from an 

eligible retirement system under the defined contribution retirement plan pursuant to 

section 54-52.6 or has accepted a retirement allowance from the public employees 

retirement system, the highway patrolmen's retirement system, the teachers' insurance 

and annuity association of America - college retirement equities fund for service credit 

earned while employed by North Dakota institutions of higher education, the 

retirement system established by job service North Dakota under section 52-11-01, the 



 

3 

 

judges' retirement system established under chapter 27-17, or the teachers' fund for 

retirement may elect to participate in the uniform group under this chapter.  
 

  “Offeror” – an entity responding to this document will be referred to as this. 

 

 “The Plan” – means the life and AD&D benefits program pursuant to this RFP. 

 

 “Waiver of Premium” – means an insurance provision that waives the payment of the 

premium and continues insurance coverage during a period of total disability as defined 

by the insurer. 

3. Mandatory Requirements 

The proposal that you submit will constitute your unqualified consent to the following 

mandatory requirements: 

 Proposals submitted in response to this request will be considered the only 

submission; revised proposals will not be allowed after the proposal return date and 

time unless requested by NDPERS. 

 All proposals must answer all applicable questions in Attachment C: Technical 

Proposal and Attachment D: Financial Proposal. 

 All proposals become the property of NDPERS and will not be returned to the 

offering company. 

 No bidders/proposers conference is scheduled nor required. 

4. Key Dates in the Proposal Process 

The following dates will apply during the proposal process. NDPERS reserves the right to 

waive or modify specific terms and conditions contained in this RFP, and to waive, modify or 

extend deadlines specified herein. 

 

Date Activity 

January 10, 2011 RFP is issued.  

February 10, 2011 
Written questions regarding proposals must be received by NDPERS 

no later than 5:00 p.m. (CDT).  

February 18, 2011 NDPERS posts responses to all questions received. 

March 1, 2011 
Proposals must be received by NDPERS no later than 5:00 p.m. 

(CDT). 

March 24, 2011 PERS Board review of proposals. 

April 21, 2011 
Finalist interviews and Best and Final Offers due, if determined 

necessary by the PERS Board on March 24
th

. 

No later than May 2011 Selection and award of contract by NDPERS. 

July 1, 2011 Effective Date of Coverage. 



 

4 

 

5. Current Enrollment and Demographics 

NDPERS provides a fully-insured group Life and AD&D benefit for active employees and 

retirees (participants) of NDPERS. In addition, eligibility is extended to eligible state and 

university employees and their dependents, as well as certain political subdivisions eligible to 

participate in NDPERS. 

 

NDPERS currently offers one plan design for Basic Life and AD&D benefits. Listed below are 

the number of eligible participants and the number of enrolled participants through September 

2010. 
 

Basic Life/AD&D 

Eligibility Category 

Number of Eligible 

and Enrolled 

Participants 

Actives  18,512 

Retirees 3,020 

 

Supplemental Life/AD&D  

Eligibility 

Category 

Number of 

Eligible 

Participants 

Number of 

Enrolled 

Participants - 

EE 

Number of 

Enrolled 

Participants - 

Spouse 

Number of 

Enrolled 

Participants - 

Dependents 

Actives  18,512 10,920 5,143 6,294 

Retirees 3,020 1,389 475 150 

 

 

Annual enrollment for the group Life and AD&D plan is conducted each year from 

approximately mid-October through mid-November for coverage effective the following 

January.  New hires must elect coverage within 31 days of their effective date.  Coverage will 

then be effective the first day of the month following the date of permanent employment.  If 

they do not elect coverage within 31 days, they must wait until the next annual enrollment 

period to apply. 
 

6. General Information on the Life and AD&D Plan 

6.1. PLAN DESIGN 
The Benefit Plan Year for NDPERS begins on July 1 of each year and concludes on June 

30
th

 of each year. 

 

Currently NDPERS contracts with Prudential Life to provide its employees Basic Life and 

AD&D, Supplemental Life and AD&D, Spouse Supplemental and Dependent Life 

coverages. 

 

 



 

5 

 

All eligible active employees are eligible for Basic Life and AD&D, Supplemental 

Life and AD&D, Spouse Supplemental Life and Dependent Supplemental Life 

coverage.  The current benefits are described below: 

 

BASIC LIFE & AD&D 
 
The current benefit for Basic Life and AD&D is $1,300.  The State pays $0.28 per 

eligible active participant. This coverage is mandatory for all eligible active 

employees.  A waiver of premium benefit is included for Basic Life and AD&D. 

 

Coverage for eligible early retirees is subject to the following: 

 

 The eligible retiree participated in the plan as an active employee. 

 There is no lapse in coverage. 

 Coverage may be decreased but not increased. 
 

The Supplemental Life and AD&D, Supplemental Dependent Life and Spouse 

Supplemental life coverage will terminate at age 65 for retirees enrolled in such coverage. 

The participant will have the option to convert the supplemental life insurance coverage to 

an individual policy.  Early retirees are not eligible to participate in the annual open 

enrollment. 

 

Eligible retirees age 65 or older may continue the Basic life coverage subject to the 

following:  

 

 The eligible retiree participated in the plan as an eligible early retiree. 

 The eligible retiree participated in the plan as an active employee. 

 There is no lapse in coverage. 

 

The current benefit for Basic Life and AD&D for retirees is $1,300.  The retiree (both 

early retirees and retirees age 65 and over) pays $4.32 per participant for this coverage. The 

premium for the retiree group is experience rated. 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL LIFE & AD&D 
 
Eligible Employees have the option of purchasing Supplemental Life and AD&D 

in $5,000 increments with the first being $3,700 to a combined Basic and 

Supplemental Life maximum of $200,000.  A waiver of premium benefit is 

included for Supplemental Life. 

The Accelerated Death Benefit is equal to 50% of the amount of Basic and Supplemental 

Life Insurance in force, or $50,000, whichever is less. This benefit is available to 

employees only. Employees must have at least $10,000 in Life Insurance coverage in 

force to qualify for this benefit. There is currently no maximum guaranteed issue 

amount for initial employee coverage. 
 



 

6 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL SPOUSE LIFE  
 

 Eligible Employees have the option of purchasing supplemental spouse life in the 

amount of 50% of the employee’s supplemental life amount to a maximum of 

$100,000. Proof of good health is required for amounts over $50,000. The 

employee must purchase Supplemental Dependent Life to be eligible for this 

coverage.  A waiver of premium benefit is included for Supplemental Spouse 

Life. 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL DEPENDENT LIFE  
 

Eligible Employees have the option of purchasing dependent life for their legal 

spouse and children less than age 19 or to age 23 if a full time student. The 

employee can choose either $2,000 or $5,000 benefit levels. The employee must 

purchase Supplemental Life to be eligible for this coverage.  A waiver of 

premium benefit is included for Supplemental Dependent Life. 
 
OTHER INFORMATION 
 
CONVERSION OPTION 
 
Please see Appendix C – Current Life and AD&D Summary booklet for details on the 

conversion options available. 

 
PREMIUM REQUIREMENTS 
 

Basic Life and AD&D - this premium is set up as a flat amount, not as a rate per thousand, 

and combines  the life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) portion for 

billing purposes 

 

1. The sum of the life insurance portion and the AD&D portion for this coverage 

needs to be evenly divisible by 2, carried out to 2 decimal places, to accommodate 

employers who have semi-monthly payrolls.   

 

2. The sum of the life insurance portion and the AD&D portion for this coverage must 

not exceed 2 decimal places (example: X.XX).  The PERS mainframe billing 

system and payroll systems do not accommodate thousandths (example: X.XXX).  

It is acceptable for the rate per thousand to have 3 decimal places, as long as when 

the life and AD&D premiums are added together, it results in a number with 2 

decimal places, such as .016 + .264 = .28. 

  

Supplemental Life & AD&D – this premium is set up as a rate per thousand and combines 

 the life and AD&D portion for billing purposes 

 

1. The sum of the life insurance portion and the AD&D portion for this coverage can 

not exceed 2 decimal places (example: XX.XX).  The PERS mainframe billing 



 

7 

 

system and payroll systems do not accommodate thousandths (example: XX.XXX)  

It is acceptable for the rate per thousand to have 3 decimal places, as long as when 

the life and AD&D premiums are added together, it results in a number with 2 

decimal places, such as .016 + .044 = .06. 

 

2. It does not matter if the rate per thousand for this coverage is divisible by 2 as long 

as the plan design continues to require the first increment of coverage to be $3,700, 

instead of $5,000.  This first increment results in premiums not always being 

evenly divisible by 2, even if the rate per thousand is divisible by 2. 

 

 Spouse Supplemental Life – this premium is set up as rate per thousand 

 

1. The rate per thousand needs to be evenly divisible by 2, carried out to 2 decimal 

places, to accommodate employers who have semi-monthly payrolls 

 

2. The rate per thousand for this coverage can not exceed 2 decimal places (example:  

XX.XX).  The PERS mainframe billing system and payroll systems do not 

accommodate thousandths (example xx.xxx) 

 

Dependent Supplemental Life – this premium is set up as a flat amount for each level of 

coverage ($2,000 and $5,000) 

 

1. Rates must be evenly divisible by 2, carried out to 2 decimal places, to 

accommodate employers who have semi-monthly payrolls 

 

2. The total premium for this coverage cannot exceed 2 decimal places (example:  

X.XX).  The PERS mainframe billing system and payroll systems do not 

accommodate thousandths (example: X.XXX). 

 

6.2. ELIGIBILITY PROVISIONS 

The following classifications of employees are eligible: 

 State employees or employees of participating Political Subdivisions who are 

eighteen (18) years of age whose services are not limited in duration, who are 

filling an approved and regularly funded position, and who are employed at least 

twenty (20) hours per week and at least twenty weeks each year of employment 

are eligible to receive benefits. 

 Retirees who are enrolled in the program may continue the basic and 

supplemental life coverage upon retirement or disability if the employee is 

entitled to a retirement allowance from an eligible retirement system. 

 

 



 

8 

 

 Eligible early retiree who meets all of the following requirements: 

o Is age 55 but less than age 65; 

o Has 10 years or more of service; and  

o Has an early retirement agreement with a State University or college. 
 

 Any temporary employee who is employed by the state, a participating county, 

city or school district, or any combination thereof; members of the legislative 

assembly, judges of the supreme or district courts, and elected state officers as 

defined by the state who are employed for at least 20 hours per week for at least 

20 weeks per year. Temporary employees are eligible for Basic Life and AD&D, 

Supplemental Life and AD&D, Spouse Supplemental Life and Dependent 

Supplemental Life coverage, EXCEPT employees and their dependents must 

provide proof of good health before the temporary employee and their 

dependents will be insured and must pay the premium for the Basic and 

Supplemental coverage. 

 

6.3. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION 
The contents of the proposal and any subsequent clarifications submitted by the successful 

proposers will become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference 

into the ensuing contract. 

 

6.4. COMPLIANCE 
Proposing companies agree to comply with all federal state, and local laws, ordinances, 

rules, regulations, and executive orders pertaining to unlawful discrimination on account 

of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, genetics or physical or mental disability, 

sex, marital status, status with regard to public assistance, disability, or age. 

 

6.5. TERM OF CONTRACT 

The North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System is governed by North Dakota 

State statutes, which includes a requirement to solicit bids for group life coverage for a 

specified term for a fully-insured arrangement. NDPERS has determined that the 

specified term for providing such life benefits under a fully insured arrangement shall be 

six years to include three biennium periods: July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2013, July 1, 2013 to 

June 30, 2015, and July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2017. 

NDPERS and the successful proposer will renegotiate the existing contract during the 

interim of each biennium without resorting to a formal bidding process. If NDPERS and 

the successful proposer are unable to reach an agreement during re-negotiations, a formal 

bidding process will be initiated. Negotiations will begin in August and end in September 

in the final fiscal year of the biennium. NDPERS also reserves the right to terminate any 

contract awarded pursuant to this bidding process within thirty (30) days notice. 

 

  



 

9 

 

The timeline in the timetable below will apply for the duration of the contract: 

 

Contract 

Period 
Effective Date Termination Date Renewal Submission Date 

Base 

Contract 
July 1, 2011 June 30, 2013 November 2012 

Option 

Period 1 
July 1, 2013 June 30, 2015 November 2014 

Option 

Period 2 
July 1, 2015 June 30, 2017 N/A 

NDPERS and the Contractor agree and acknowledge that the account services to be 

provided under this proposal will occur between June 1, 2011 and June 30, 2013.  

However, NDPERS and the Contractor also agree and acknowledge that there are duties 

and obligations specified by this proposal to be performed both prior to and after these 

dates.  The parties each agree to perform all such duties and obligations, and all damage 

provisions included in the Agreement shall thereby be in effect. 
 

6.6. General 

Offerors should keep in mind the following considerations as they prepare proposals in 

response to this RFP. 

 The Life and AD&D program is fully insured. 

 With respect to this contract and program, no commissions, bonuses or overrides will 

be paid to any party directly by NDPERS. 

 No minimum participation requirements will be allowed by NDPERS. 

 The Incumbent vendor will process all claims incurred prior to 7/1/2011. 

 The Contractor will process all claims incurred while the contract between NDPERS 

and the Contractor is in effect. This includes run-out claims incurred during the period 

of the contract, but processed after the contract has been terminated. 

  



 

10 

 

II. ELIGIBILITY AND SELECTION CRITERIA  

1. Minimum Requirements 

To be eligible for consideration for this project, the Offeror must meet the Minimum 

Requirements set forth in Attachment C-1: Minimum Requirements.  All Offerors must fill 

out and submit this exhibit with their proposal.   
 

2. Selection Criteria 

Proposal information provided in direct response to the Proposal Cost Summary and 

Questionnaire sections will be relied upon to evaluate all proposals. The ability to meet 

NDPERS minimum bid requirements is essential. The following criteria will be used: 

 Ability to meet NDPERS minimum requirements as outlined in this RFP 

 Financial position of the carrier, with special emphasis as to its solvency 

 Cost/value of services 

 Level/adequacy of services 

 Completeness of response to RFP specifications 

 Experience/reputation serving large accounts 

 Public sector experience/reputation 

 Data and reporting capabilities, ease of administration 

 Flexibility to meet NDPERS needs 

Price will not be the sole determinant factor in the decision to award the contract. NDPERS 

reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals. The cost of the proposal will be borne 

by the respondent. 



 

11 

 

III. GENERAL INFORMATION 
1. Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) 

In order to obtain Attachment E: Confidential Documents, which contains confidential data 

that is necessary to complete a proposal in response to this RFP, each Offeror must complete 

and return a signed Non-Disclosure Agreement.  NDPERS requests that only those 

organizations who plan to respond to this RFP should submit the Non-Disclosure Agreement. 

The Non-Disclosure Agreement must be in the form provided as Appendix B to this RFP. The 

Non-Disclosure Agreement must be received before any confidential data is released to any 

Offeror.  Please send the NDA to the attention of: 
 

Jim Schaefer, Senior Consultant 

Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company 

5605 N. MacArthur Blvd, STE 870 

Irving, TX 75038-2631 

Phone: (469) 524-1808 

E-mail: jim.schaefer@gabrielroeder.com   
 

The information that will be provided to the Offeror after submission of the Non-Disclosure 

Agreement includes the following: 

1.  Census information for NDPERS members through September 2010. 

In order to obtain Attachment E, an Offeror must first print, sign and return the Non-Disclosure 

Agreement found at Appendix B, “Non-Disclosure Agreement,” to Jim Schaefer as described 

above.  A scanned copy with the appropriate signature transmitted by e-mail is acceptable.  

Jim Schaefer’s e-mail address is provided above.  The Attachment will be mailed to each 

Offeror via FedEx, UPS or DHL upon receipt of the Non-Disclosure Agreement.  The 

Attachment will be provided on CD and will contain the necessary file in Microsoft Excel 

and/or Microsoft Access.   

 

Note:  Failure to complete all fields on Appendix B may slow the processing of the request for 

Attachment E or may cause the request to be rejected.  In such instances, Gabriel Roeder 

Smith & Company will attempt to contact the submitter to resolve the deficiencies. 
 

2. Inquiries Regarding Specifications 

Offerors will have until 5:00 p.m. (CDT) on February 10, 2011 to submit questions in writing 

regarding this RFP.  All questions shall, to the highest degree possible, cite the specific RFP 

section and paragraph number(s) to which the question refers.  Any questions received by 

NDPERS prior to the date and time above will be answered in a question and answer document 

issued by NDPERS.  Only answers provided in writing by NDPERS will be considered 

official.  

 

All query submissions must include the identity of the sender, the sender's title, firm name, 

mailing address, telephone number, and e-mail address. 

mailto:jim.schaefer@gabrielroeder.com


 

12 

 

Questions must be submitted to Jim Schaefer via fax, e-mail, mail, or hand delivery using the 

Point-Of-Contact information found below.  NDPERS is not responsible for questions 

received after the submittal deadline. 

Answers to questions will be made available on the NDPERS Web site at www.nd.gov/ndpers 

by February 18, 2011 at 5:00 p.m. C.D.T. 

Only information in the materials constituting this RFP, including its attachments, exhibits, 

and forms, the question and answer document, and any RFP addendum shall be binding on 

NDPERS. 

All inquiries regarding these specifications must be in writing and addressed to:  

 

Jim Schaefer 

Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company5605 N. 

MacArthur Blvd, STE 870 

Irving, TX 75038-2631 

Phone: (469) 524-1808 

E-mail: jim.schaefer@gabrielroeder.com 
 

3. Rules and Regulations 

Any Offeror submitting a proposal must be able to meet and comply with all applicable state 

and federal statutes and regulations. 

4. Confidentiality of trade secret, proprietary, commercial, and 
financial information (NDCC Section 44-04-18.4(6) 

Unless made confidential under subsection 1 or made exempt under subsection 5, bids or 

proposals received by a public entity in response to a request for proposals by the public entity 

are exempt until all of the proposals have been received and opened by the public entity or until 

all oral presentations regarding the proposals, if any, have been heard by the public entity. 

Records included with any bid or proposal naming and generally describing the entity 

submitting the proposal are open. 

5. Addenda, Amendments, and Clarifications to the RFP 

NDPERS may issue any addenda, amendments, and clarifications regarding this RFP that 

NDPERS determines are necessary.  All such addenda, amendments, and clarifications issued 

by NDPERS become part of the RFP. All addenda, amendments, and clarifications to the RFP 

will be issued in writing and added to the posting on the www.nd.gov/ndpers.  NDPERS may 

also e-mail any addenda, amendments, or clarifications to all eligible Offerors that have 

submitted a Non-Disclosure Agreement that is recorded by NDPERS and that have provided 

NDPERS with an e-mail address.  However, it shall be the responsibility of the Offeror to 

recheck the RFP posting on the www.nd.gov/ndpers for any possible addenda prior to 

submitting a proposal.  The Offeror must acknowledge all addenda, amendments, or 

clarifications by either signing and returning such document(s) or indicating receipt on the 

http://www.nd.gov/ndpers
mailto:jim.schaefer@gabrielroeder.com
http://www.nd.gov/ndpers
http://www.nd.gov/ndpers


 

13 

 

Signature Page of the proposal.  Only written addenda, amendments, and clarifications signed 

or sent by authorized NDPERS personnel shall be binding. All oral and other interpretations or 

clarifications have no legal effect. 

6. Order of Responses 

Responses must be made in the same order as provided in the specifications.  Unless a 

variation from the specifications of the RFP is specifically noted in a response, the Offeror is 

agreeing to meet all requirements, including the required contract provisions, stated in this 

RFP.  No proposed variation is binding on NDPERS unless and until accepted by NDPERS. 

7. Submission of Proposals 

To be considered for award, one (1) unbound original and nine (9) additional copies of the 

Offeror’s proposal must be received by NDPERS on or before 5:00 P.M. (CDT), March 1, 

2011.  The unbound copy shall bear original signatures and shall be marked as the "Master 

Copy".  Unbound original shall contain no divider sheets or tabs, and shall be printed on one 

side only of 8-1/2 in. x 11 in. white paper to enable copying if needed.  Colors must reproduce 

in a legible manner on a black-and-white copier.  The unbound original and one (1) copy of 

the proposal on CD (in MS WORD and MS Excel formats as appropriate) shall be provided in 

a sealed envelope.  Copies of the proposal shall be delivered to:  

 

Kathy Allen, Benefit Programs Manager 

NDPERS 

400 East Broadway, STE 505 

P.O. Box 1657 

Bismarck, ND 58505 

 

 One additional copy of the Offeror’s proposal along with a copy of the proposal on CD (in 

MS WORD and MS Excel formats as appropriate) shall also be sent to:  

Mr. Jim Schaefer 

Health Care Practice Leader, Senior Consultant  

Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company 

5605 N. MacArthur, Suite 870 

Irving, TX 75038-2631 

 The base contract will be for a two year period of July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013.  All 

rates and fees must be firm, fixed and valid for the duration of the base period. 

Additionally, NDPERS is seeking two, two year option periods for a potential total 

contract period of six years.  NDPERS is requesting firm, fixed rates for each of the two 

option periods to be contained in the Offeror proposal.  

 Proposals and any other information submitted by organizations in response to this RFP 

shall become the property of NDPERS and will not be returned. 

 NDPERS will not provide compensation to Offerors for any expenses that they incur as 

part of the proposal process, including but not limited to expenses incurred for preparing 



 

14 

 

proposals, making demonstrations, responding to inquiries, and attending meetings and 

negotiations.  Offerors submit proposals at their own risk and expense. 

 The materials submitted must be enclosed in a sealed envelope, box, or container; the 

outside of the package must show clearly the submittal deadline, organization name, and 

the return address of the organization. 

 Late proposals may be returned to the organization unopened at the organization’s 

expense.  Late proposals will not be considered unless the NDPERS Board determines 

otherwise. 

 Telephone proposals and proposals transmitted electronically will not be accepted. 

 Any award is contingent upon a contract acceptable to NDPERS being executed. 

8. Acceptance of Proposals 

NDPERS retains the right to reject all proposals submitted. NDPERS is not required to select 

the proposal with the lowest fees, but will take into consideration any factor it considers 

relevant.  It is the intent of NDPERS at this time to enter into a contract effective upon 

execution (with services beginning July 1, 2011) through June 30, 2013.  The Board at its 

discretion may extend the contract for up to two additional two-year periods.  The premium 

and benefit structure of these extensions will be subject to negotiations.  NDPERS has the 

right to discontinue the program if the legislature discontinues the program or for any other 

reason.  The Offeror whose proposal is selected will be chosen with the goal of developing a 

long-term relationship. 

9. Non-Responsive Proposals 

NDPERS is not required to accept for consideration any proposal that does not comply with 

the criteria set forth herein. 

10. References 

Each Offeror must provide references from other clients as requested in Attachment C-2: 

Offeror Information. NDPERS or its designated representative may ask these clients to 

provide information regarding the Offeror’s overall record of service in providing services 

for their members.  Providing references in its proposal constitutes the Offeror’s permission 

for NDPERS to contact these clients. 

11. Member Identification  

For most records, Social Security numbers will be used as the reference number to identify 

retirees and their dependents for the purposes of the program.   NDPERS’ also has a unique 

NDPERS number for each individual in the plan.   

12. Certification 

An authorized Officer of any Offeror submitting a proposal must certify that the organization 

complies with the RFP specifications by signing and returning the Signature Pages included 

in this RFP as Attachment C-1, Attachment C-8, Attachment D-2 and Attachment D-7.  

An authorized Officer must also sign Attachment C-7: Deviations and Attachment D-4: 



 

15 

 

Explanations, even if the Offeror is not claiming any deviations. 

13. Waiver 

By submitting a proposal, the Offeror submitting the proposal agrees to waive any claim it 

has or may have against NDPERS, NDPERS employees, NDPERS agents, and NDPERS 

attorneys, arising out of or in connection with (1) the administration, evaluation or 

recommendation of any proposal; (2) waiver of any requirement under this RFP; (3) 

acceptance or rejection of any proposal; and (4) award of the contract. 

14. Additional Information from Responding Organizations 

NDPERS reserves the right to request additional documentation from responding 

organizations, and such information may vary by Offeror. 

15. Modification 

No proposal may be changed after the deadline for submissions of proposals unless language 

within the proposal is clarified at NDPERS’ request. 

16. Solicitation 

The selected Offeror shall not use lists of covered employees and other data for any purpose 

except to provide services to participants.  Neither the selected Offeror nor its employees 

may disclose such information to any other party unless specifically authorized in writing in 

advance by NDPERS. 

17. News Release 

Written approval by NDPERS will be required for any news releases or other 

communications regarding a contract awarded to an Offeror. 

18. Change Required by Statute, Regulation, Court Orders, or 
Program Appropriations 

NDPERS recognizes that there are factors that could cause a change of condition with regard 

to NDPERS benefits and administration that are beyond the control of NDPERS or the 

Offeror submitting a proposal. Those factors that may affect the program include, but are not 

limited to: 

 Federal and state statutes, regulations, court decisions and administrative rulings 

 Funding appropriated by the North Dakota Legislature 

 Opinions of the Attorney General of the State of North Dakota 

NDPERS expects a good faith effort on the part of the Offeror that is selected to comply with 

additional responsibilities imposed by federal or state law without requiring mid-year fee 

increases.  NDPERS reserves the right to negotiate with the Offeror as needed to comply 

with any changes required by statute, regulation, court order, administrative order or official 

interpretation. 



 

16 

 

19. Financial Background 

Appendix D shows historical financial information, rate and experience history. 



 

17 

 

IV. CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

1. Introduction 

The Agreement between NDPERS and the Contractor will include the RFP as finally amended 

and/or clarified, the Contractor’s proposal as amended or clarified, if applicable, and any other 

information the Contractor may be required to provide.  

The contract documents are intended as the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement 

between NDPERS and the Contractor and supersede all prior or contemporaneous agreements, 

negotiations, course of prior dealings, or oral representations relating to the Agreement subject 

matter. 

The terms and conditions of any agreements, amendments, modifications, or other documents 

submitted by the Offeror that conflict with or in any way purport to amend or add to any of the 

terms and conditions of the Agreement are specifically objected to by NDPERS and are of no 

force or effect. 

The Agreement may be amended within the contract period by mutual consent of the parties. 

No modification or amendment to the Agreement shall become valid unless in writing and 

signed by both parties. All correspondence regarding modifications or amendments to the 

Agreement must be forwarded to NDPERS for prior review and approval.  

The contracting organization agrees that it shall not publicize this Contract or disclose, confirm 

or deny any details thereof to third parties or use any photographs or video recordings of 

NDPERS’ or participating entities’ employees or use NDPERS’ name in connection with any 

sales promotion or publicity event without the prior express written approval of NDPERS. 

2. Failure to Comply 

Failure to comply with the procedures required by NDPERS or any other applicable guidelines 

shall be cause for the immediate imposition of liquidated damages and/or immediate 

cancellation of the Agreement, at NDPERS’s option. Liquidated damages and/or cancellation 

shall remain in effect until NDPERS has been satisfied that circumstances resulting in 

liquidated damages and/or cancellation have been corrected.  

3. Compliance with ERISA 

NDPERS is not directly covered by the provisions of ERISA because it is a governmental 

entity. 

4. Taxpayer I.D. Number 

The Contractor must obtain a Vendor Identification Number in order to receive payments 

issued through NDPERS.  The Contractor will be required to complete a Payment 

Identification Form (W-9) and submit it to NDPERS in order to receive payment. 



 

18 

 

5. Authorized Signatures 

An authorized officer of the Offeror must sign the Minimum Requirements (Attachment C-1), 

the Signature Page (Attachment C-8), the Deviations page (Attachment C-7), the Financial 

Requirements page (Attachment D-2) and the Explanations (Attachment D-4), which are part 

of this RFP. Offeror shall include a copy of the documents granting the signing officer 

authority to bind the Offeror to the agreements and representations made in the Offeror’s 

proposal. These documents shall be labeled as Response Attachment C-8: Authorization 

Documentation and Response Attachment D-7: Authorization Documentation. 

6. Prohibited Interest 

An officer, director or employee of NDPERS may not have a direct interest in the gains or 

profits from any Agreement executed by NDPERS pursuant to this RFP and may not receive 

any pay or emolument for any service performed for the Contractor.  

7. Required Contract Provisions 

The selected Offeror will enter into a written agreement between it and NDPERS. The contract 

shall be in a form satisfactory to NDPERS. 



 

19 

 

V. ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

1. Eligibility / Participant Premium Billings Services 

NDPERS will submit enrollment, billing and premium remittance via a centralized 

electronic system. NDPERS will collect enrollment/eligibility information which will be 

provided to the successful contractor on a data file that follows the HIPAA 834 file 

specifications. Premium payment information will be provided on a data file that follows 

the HIPAA 820 file specifications.  Files will be transmitted using a secure file 

transmission process.  The successful contractor must be able to receive this data in that 

format and media. 

 

The first $50,000 of Basic & Employee Supplemental life premiums will be eligible for 

salary reduction on a pre-tax basis, through IRC Section 125. 

 

2. Reporting 
Reporting is received on an ad hoc basis and at renewal. 

 

3. Plan Booklets 
An electronic copy is published at www.nd.gov/ndpers.  
 

4. Functional Relationships 
It is expected that the Contractor will be interfacing with the following people at 

NDPERS: 

 

General Account Management Contact: Kathy Allen, Benefit Programs Manager  

 
5. Applicable Law 

54-52.1-02. Uniform group insurance program created – Formation into subgroups. 

In order to promote the economy and efficiency of employment in the state's service, 

reduce personnel turnover, and offer an incentive to high-grade men and women to enter 

and remain in the service of state employment, there is hereby created a uniform group 

insurance program. The uniform group must be composed of eligible and retired 

employees and be formed to provide hospital benefits coverage, medical benefits 

coverage, and life insurance benefits coverage in the manner set forth in this chapter.  

 

 

 

  



 

20 

 

VI. FORMAT OF PROPOSAL 

Offeror shall submit their proposal in accordance with the requirements of Section III.7, 

Submission of Proposals.  Regarding the proposal, Offerors are hereby advised of the 

following: 

 Each proposal shall be prepared simply and economically, providing a 

straightforward, concise description of the organization’s ability to meet the 

requirements of this RFP.  Emphasis should be on completeness, clarity of content, 

responsiveness to the requirements and an understanding of NDPERS’s needs. 

 Proposals that are qualified with conditional clauses, alterations, items not called for in 

the RFP documents, or irregularities of any kind are subject to disqualification by 

NDPERS, at its option. 

 Representations made within the proposal will be binding on the responding 

organizations.  NDPERS will not be bound to act by any previous communication or 

proposal submitted by the organization other than this RFP and any proposal 

submitted in response to this RFP. 

 Any pages or information which the Offeror wishes to claim as confidential shall be 

clearly marked within the proposal.  Additionally, the Offeror shall provide a brief 

summary page after the Table of Contents explaining the confidential nature of any 

marked pages.   

The proposal shall include the following sections in the order in which they appear below.  

Each of the attachments described in this section must be completed in the MS Excel format in 

which it is provided. 

1. Cover Letter 

A transmittal letter shall be bound with the Offeror’s proposal.  The letter should bear the 

name and address of the Offeror.  The purpose of this letter is to transmit the proposal(s) 

and acknowledge the receipt of any addenda.  The transmittal letter should be brief and 

signed by an individual who is authorized to commit the Offeror to the services and 

requirements as stated in this RFP. 

2. Table of Contents 

The proposal shall include a Table of Contents that lists page number references.  The 

Table of Contents should be in sufficient detail to facilitate easy reference to the sections 

of the proposal and separate attachments (which shall be included in the main Table of 

Contents).  If supplemental materials are included with the proposal, each copy of the 

proposal must include such supplemental materials.  Supplemental information and 

attachments included by the organization (i.e., not required) should be clearly identified in 

the Table of Contents and provided as a separate section. 

 

Information which is claimed to be confidential is to be identified on a separate sheet(s) 

after the Table of Contents in the Offeror’s proposal.  Such indication shall include the 

section(s) and page number(s) and a brief explanation for each claim of confidentiality 

shall be included. 



 

21 

 

3. Attachment C: Technical Proposal 

The Offeror shall complete each of the tabs in Attachment C according to the instructions 

described below and any additional instructions included at the top of each worksheet.   

Cells which have been highlighted in yellow require a response from the Offeror.  

Response types throughout the documents include selecting from a pre-set drop down 

menu, entering a numerical value and/or writing a brief narrative.  If the cell includes a 

drop down menu, the Offeror shall not provide a response that is not provided in the drop 

down list. 

 

Microsoft Excel will only print the first 1,024 characters in each cell.  Therefore, 

please limit the length of your response to 1,024 characters. Additional space has been 

provided in Attachments C-5b:  Additional Answers to Questionnaire for the Offeror to 

continue a response from Attachment C-5a (General Questionnaire and Attachment 

appropriate).   

In addition, the unlocked cells will automatically lock if the Offeror pastes an answer 

into a cell.  This will prohibit the user from editing the cell(s) at a later time.  The 

Offeror can use the Undo function to unlock the cell only if changes have not been 

saved since the paste occurred. 

3.1. Attachment C-1: Minimum Requirements 

The Offeror shall complete Attachment C-1 as requested.  The Offeror shall state 

how they specifically meet or exceed each requirement. 

 

The Offeror’s Legal Name entered in Attachment C-1 will automatically be used 

to populate the Attachment C-8: Signature Page in addition to other areas of the 

MS Excel attachments. 

3.2. Attachment C-2: Offeror Information 

The Offeror shall complete each section of Attachment C-2 as requested.  

References provided shall include at least one reference for which the proposed 

account manager currently provides service. 

 

The Offeror’s Legal Name entered in Attachment C-2 will automatically be used 

to populate Attachment C-7: Deviations, in addition to other areas of the MS Excel 

attachments. 

3.3. Attachment C-3: Current and Proposed Plan Design 

This is reference document provided to the Offerors.  It is not necessary to 

respond anywhere on Attachment C-3. 

3.4. Attachment C-4: Administrative Requirements 

The Offeror shall complete the exhibit by selecting either “Agree” or “Disagree” 

from the drop down list next to each administrative requirement.  For each 

requirement for which the Offeror selects “Disagree”, an explanation must be 

provided in Attachment C-7: Deviations. 



 

22 

 

3.5. Attachment C-5: General Questionnaire 

The Offeror shall answer each question in C-5a: General Questionnaire 

completely/briefly in the space provided.  If additional space is needed, the 

response can be continued in Attachment C-5b: Additional Answers to 

Questionnaire.  Continued responses should be labeled clearly with both the 

Section number (C-5a) and the corresponding question number. 

 

If a drop down list is available, the Offeror shall select a response from the list 

provided. 

3.6. Attachment C-6: Subcontractor Questionnaire 

The Offeror shall complete a Subcontractor Questionnaire for each subcontractor 

proposed to perform any of the administrative requirements of this contract. 

  

3.7. Attachment C-7: Deviations 

The Offeror shall complete this attachment regardless of whether or not deviations 

from the administrative requirements or performance guarantees are proposed.  

The top right of the worksheet includes macros that the Offeror can use to indicate 

whether or not deviations are included in the table below the signature line.  

Prior to printing the final proposal, the Offeror shall ensure that the print 

area of this document is set appropriately.  If no deviations are claimed, then 

the print area shall end following the title of the individual signing the document. 

Otherwise, the print area shall end following the last deviation described in the 

table. 

3.8. Attachment C-8: Signature Page 

The Offeror shall complete this attachment and provide documentation granting 

authorization for the signing officer to bind the Offeror to the agreements and 

representations made in the Offeror’s proposal. Label the documentation as 

Response Attachment C-8: Authorization Documentation. 

3.9. Response Attachments  

The following response attachments shall be included in the following order: 

 Response Attachment C-5: Insurance Certificate – Workers’ Compensation 

 Response Attachment C-5: Insurance Certificate – E&O Insurance 

 Response Attachment C-5: Insurance Certificate – Commercial General Liability 

 Response Attachment C-5: Annual Reports 

 Response Attachment C-5: Financial Statements 

 Response Attachment C-5: Financial Ratings 

 Response Attachment C-5: Conflict of Interest List 

 Response Attachment C-5: List of Exclusions 

 Response Attachment C-5: Claim Forms 

 Response Attachment C-5: Sample Application and Health Statement Forms 

 Response Attachment C-5: Sample Communications Materials 

 Response Attachment C-5: Communication Plan 



 

23 

 

 Response Attachment C-5: Sample Benefit Booklet 

 Response Attachment C-5: Standard Reports 

 Response Attachment C-5: Implementation Team Organizational Chart 

 Response Attachment C-5: Preliminary Implementation Plan 

 Response Attachment C-5: Account Management Team Organizational Chart 

 Response Attachment C-5: Account Management Support 

 Response Attachment C-5: Account Team Biographies 

 Response Attachment C-8: Authorization Documentation 

4. Attachment D: Financial Proposal 

The Offeror shall complete each of the tabs in Attachment D according to the instructions 

described below and any additional instructions included at the top of each worksheet.   

Cells which have been highlighted in yellow require a response from the Offeror.  

Response types throughout the documents include selecting from a pre-set drop down 

menu, entering a numerical value and/or writing a brief narrative.  If the cell includes a 

drop down menu, the Offeror shall not provide a response that is not provided in the drop 

down list. 

4.1. Attachment D-2: Financial Requirements 

The Offeror shall complete Attachment D-2 as requested.  The Offeror shall state 

how they specifically meet or exceed each requirement. 

4.2. Attachment D-3: Financial Questionnaire 

The Offeror shall answer each question in D-3a: Financial Questionnaire 

completely/briefly in the space provided.  If additional space is needed, the 

response can be continued in Attachment D3b: Additional Answers to 

Questionnaire.  Continued responses should be labeled clearly with both the 

Section number (D-3a) and the corresponding question number. 

 

If a drop down list is available, the Offeror shall select a response from the list 

provided. 

4.3. Attachment D-4: Explanations 

The Offeror shall complete this attachment regardless of whether or not explanations 

from the financial requirements are proposed.  The top right of the worksheet 

includes macros that the Offeror can use to indicate whether or not explanations are 

included in the table below the signature line.  

 

Prior to printing the final proposal, the Offeror shall ensure that the print area 

of this document is set appropriately.  If no explanations are claimed, then the 

print area shall end following the title of the individual signing the document. 

Otherwise, the print area shall end following the last deviation described in the table. 

 



 

24 

 

4.4. Attachment D-5 Financial Proposal 

Complete the charts on this tab with the applicable benefits information and/or 

premium rates required that will be offered to NDPERS participants. 

4.5. Attachment D-6 Premium Breakdown (Retention Exhibit) 

It is the intent of NDPERS that the items listed below be included within the 

premiums offered in Attachment D-5: Financial Proposal.  In the table provided, 

please enter the applicable percentage of the total premium attributable to the 

component of the premium listed.  For any item for which the Offeror enters 0%, it 

will be assumed that the service is included in the premium; however, the Offeror is 

unable to provide a separate percentage attributable to that item. Percentages should 

add up to a total of 100%. 

 

In addition, percentages shown below will be consistent regardless of the aggregate 

enrollment or the contract year.  Offerors should not use this exhibit to propose 

additional pricing for any component of the premium listed below. 
 

4.6. Attachment D-7: Signature Page 

The Offeror shall complete this attachment and provide documentation granting 

authorization for the signing officer to bind the Offeror to the agreements and 

representations made in the Offeror’s proposal. Label the documentation as 

Response Attachment D-7: Authorization Documentation. 

4.7. Response Attachments 

The following response attachments shall be included in the following order: 

 Response Attachment D-3: Rating Structure for Ported Policies 

 Response Attachment D-7: Authorization Documentation 



 

25 

 

APPENDICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

26 

 

Appendix A – Model State Contract 
 
 

SAMPLE PERSONAL SERVICE CONTRACT 
 
The parties to this contract are the State of North Dakota, acting through the North Dakota Public 

Employees Retirement System (STATE) and [contractor’s legal name] (CONTRACTOR); 

 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICE 
CONTRACTOR, in exchange for the compensation paid by STATE under this contract, agrees to 

provide the following services: 

 
2. TERM OF CONTRACT 
The term of this contract is for a period of _____months, commencing on the ___ day of 

___________, 20__, and terminating on the ___ day of ___________, 20__. 

 
3. COMPENSATION 
STATE will pay for the services provided by CONTRACTOR under this contract an amount not 

to exceed _______________per ______, to be paid _______________. 

 
4. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

a. Termination without cause.  This contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both 

parties, or by either party upon 30-days written notice. 

 
i. Termination for lack of funding or authority. STATE may terminate this contract 

effective upon delivery of written notice to CONTRACTOR, or on any later date stated 

in the notice, under any of the following conditions: 

 
1) If funding from federal, state, or other sources is not obtained and continued at 

levels sufficient to allow for purchase of the services or supplies in the indicated 

quantities or term.  The contract may be modified by agreement of the parties in 

writing to accommodate a reduction in funds. 

 
2) If federal or state laws or rules are modified or interpreted in a way that the 

services are no longer allowable or appropriate for purchase under this contract or 

are no longer eligible for the funding proposed for payments authorized by this 

contract. 

 

3) If any license, permit or certificate required by law or rule, or by the terms of this 

contract, is for any reason denied, revoked, suspended or not renewed. 

 

Termination of this contract under this subsection is without prejudice to any obligations 

or liabilities of either party already accrued prior to termination. 

b. Termination for cause.  STATE by written notice of default to CONTRACTOR may 

terminate the whole or any part of this contract: 

 



 

27 

 

i. If CONTRACTOR fails to provide services required by this contract within the time 

specified or any extension agreed to by STATE; or 

 
ii. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract, or so 

fail to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this contract in accordance with 

its terms. 

 
iii. The rights and remedies of STATE provided in the above clause related to defaults by 

CONTRACTOR are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies 

provided by law or under this contract. 

 
5. FORCE MAJEURE 
CONTRACTOR will not be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, acts of God 

or war if the event is beyond CONTRACTOR’S reasonable control and CONTRACTOR gives 

notice to STATE immediately upon occurrence of the event causing the delay or default or that is 

reasonably expected to cause a delay or default. 

 
6. RENEWAL 
This contract will not automatically renew.  STATE will provide written notice to 

CONTRACTOR of its intent to renew this contract at least 60 days before the scheduled 

termination date. 

 
7. MERGER AND MODIFICATION 
This contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  There are no understandings, 

agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified within this contract.  This contract 

may not be modified, supplemented or amended, in any manner, except by written agreement 

signed by both parties. 

 
8. SEVERABILITY 
If any term of this contract is declared by a court having jurisdiction to be illegal or 

unenforceable, the validity of the remaining terms must not be affected, and, if possible, the rights 

and obligations of the parties are to be construed and enforced as if the contract did not contain 

that term. 

 
9. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS 
CONTRACTOR may not assign or otherwise transfer or delegate any right or duty without 

STATE’S express written consent.  However, CONTRACTOR may enter into subcontracts 

provided that any subcontract acknowledges the binding nature of this contract and incorporates 

this contract, including any attachments.  CONTRACTOR is solely responsible for the 

performance of any subcontractor.  CONTRACTOR has no authority to contract for or incur 

obligations on behalf of STATE. 

 
10. NOTICE 
All notices or other communications required under this contract must be given by registered or 

certified mail and are complete on the date mailed when addressed to the parties at the following 

addresses: 



 

28 

 

 

Sparb Collins, Executive Director    

ND Public Employees Retirement System       

  400 East Broadway, Suite 505    

  P.O. Box 1657      

  Bismarck, ND  58502-1657 

 
11. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 
This contract is governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North 

Dakota.  Any action to enforce this contract must be brought in the District Court of Burleigh 

County, North Dakota. 

 
12. SPOLIATION – NOTICE OF POTENTIAL CLAIMS 
CONTRACTOR agrees to promptly notify STATE of all potential claims that arise or result from 

this contract. CONTRACTOR shall also take all reasonable steps to preserve all physical evidence 

and information that may be relevant to the circumstances surrounding a potential claim, while 

maintaining public safety, and grants to STATE the opportunity to review and inspect the 

evidence, including the scene of an accident. 

 
13. INDEMNITY 
CONTRACTOR agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the state of North Dakota, its 

agencies, officers and employees (STATE), from and against claims based on the vicarious 

liability of the STATE or its agents, but not against claims based on the STATE’s contributory 

negligence, comparative and/or contributory negligence or fault, sole negligence, or intentional 

misconduct. This obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless does not extend to 

professional liability claims arising from professional errors and omissions. The legal defense 

provided by CONTRACTOR to the STATE under this provision must be free of any conflicts of 

interest, even if retention of separate legal counsel for the STATE is necessary. CONTRACTOR 

also agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the STATE harmless for all costs, expenses and 

attorneys' fees incurred if the STATE prevails in an action against CONTRACTOR in establishing 

and litigating the indemnification coverage provided herein. This obligation shall continue after 

the termination of this agreement. 

 
14. INSURANCE 

a. CONTRACTOR shall secure and keep in force during the term of this agreement, 

from insurance companies, government self-insurance pools or government 

self-retention funds, authorized to do business in North Dakota, the following 

insurance coverages: 

i. Commercial general liability, including premises or operations, contractual, 

and products or completed operations coverages, with minimum liability 

limits of $250,000 per person and $1,000,000 per occurrence.   

ii. Automobile liability, including owned (if any), hired, and non-owned 

automobiles, with minimum liability limits of $250,000 per person and 

$1,000,000 per occurrence. 

iii. Workers compensation coverage meeting all statutory requirements. The 

policy shall provide coverage for all states of operation that apply to the 



 

29 

 

performance of this contract. 

iv. Employer’s liability or “stop gap” insurance of not less than $1,000,000 as 

an endorsement on the workers compensation or commercial general 

liability insurance. 

v. Professional errors and omissions, including a three year “tail coverage 

endorsement,” with minimum liability limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence 

and in the aggregate. 

b. The insurance coverages listed above must meet the following additional 

requirements: 

i. Any deductible or self insured retention amount or other similar obligation 

under the policies is the sole responsibility of CONTRACTOR.  

ii. This insurance may be in policy or policies of insurance, primary and 

excess, including the so-called umbrella or catastrophe form and must be 

placed with insurers rated “A-” or better by A.M. Best Company, Inc., 

provided any excess policy follows form for coverage. Less than an “A-” 

rating must be approved by state.  The policies shall be in form and terms 

approved by state. "Follows form" means the excess policy must be written 

with the same terms and conditions as the policy to which it is excess. 

iii. The duty to indemnify State under this agreement must not be limited by the 

insurance required in this agreement. 

iv. The State of North Dakota and its agencies, officers, and employees (State) 

must be endorsed on the commercial general liability policy, including any 

excess policies (to the extent applicable), as additional insured.  State must 

have all the rights and coverages as CONTRACTOR under the policies.  

v. The insurance required in this agreement, through a policy or endorsement, 

shall include: 

(1) a “Waiver of Subrogation” waiving any right to recovery the 

insurance company may have against State;   

(2) a provision that the policy and endorsements may not be canceled or 

modified without 30-days prior written notice to the undersigned 

State representative; 

(3) a provision that any attorney who represents State under this policy 

must first qualify as, and be appointed by, the North Dakota 

Attorney General as a special assistant attorney general as required 

under N.D.C.C. § 54-12-08; 

(4) a provision that CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage will be 

primary (i.e., pay first) as respects any insurance, self-insurance or 

self-retention maintained by the state and that any insurance, 

self-insurance or self-retention maintained by State must be in 

excess of CONTRACTOR’s insurance and must not contribute with 

it; 

(5) cross liability/severability of interest for all policies and 

endorsements; 

(6) The legal defense provided to the STATE under the policy and any 



 

30 

 

endorsements must be free of any conflicts of interest, even if 

retention of separate legal counsel for the STATE is necessary; 

(7) The insolvency or bankruptcy of the insured CONTRACTOR shall 

not release the insurer from payment under the policy, even when 

such insolvency or bankruptcy prevents the insured 

CONTRACTOR from meeting the retention limit under the policy. 

vi. The legal defense provided to State under the policy and any endorsements 

must be free of any conflicts of interest, even if retention of separate legal 

counsel for State is necessary. 

vii. CONTRACTOR shall furnish a certificate of insurance, the additional 

insured endorsement adding the State of North Dakota as an additional 

insured, and, if requested, a copy of the insurance policy and all its 

endorsements, to the undersigned State representative prior to 

commencement of this contract.  

viii. Failure to provide insurance as required in this agreement is a material 

breach of contract entitling State to terminate this agreement immediately. 

 
15. ATTORNEY FEES 
In the event a lawsuit is instituted by STATE to obtain performance due of any kind under this 

contract, and STATE is the prevailing party, CONTRACTOR shall, except when prohibited by 

N.D.C.C. § 28-26-04, pay STATE’S reasonable attorney fees and costs in connection with the 

lawsuit. 

 
16. ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION – JURY TRIAL 
STATE does not agree to any form of binding arbitration, mediation, or other forms of mandatory 

alternative dispute resolution.  The parties have the right to enforce their rights and remedies in 

judicial proceedings.  STATE does not waive any right to a jury trial. 

 
17. CONFIDENTIALITY 
CONTRACTOR agrees not to use or disclose any information it receives from STATE under this 

contract that STATE has previously identified as confidential or exempt from mandatory  public 

disclosure except as necessary to carry out the purposes of this contract or as authorized in 

advance by STATE. STATE agrees not to disclose any information it receives from 

CONTRACTOR that CONTRACTOR has previously identified as confidential and that STATE 

determines in its sole discretion is protected from mandatory public disclosure under a specific 

exception to the North Dakota open records law, N.D.C.C. § 44-04-18.  The duty of STATE and 

CONTRACTOR to maintain confidentiality of information under this section continues beyond 

the term of this contract, or any extensions or renewals of it. 

 
18. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAW 
CONTRACTOR understands that, except for disclosures prohibited in Section 17, STATE must 

disclose to the public upon request any records it receives from CONTRACTOR.  

CONTRACTOR further understands that any records that are obtained or generated by 

CONTRACTOR under this contract, except for records that are confidential under Section 17 

may, under certain circumstances, be open to the public upon request under the North Dakota open 

records law.  CONTRACTOR agrees to contact STATE immediately upon receiving a request 



 

31 

 

for information under the open records law and to comply with STATE’S instructions on how to 

respond to the request. 

 
19. WORK PRODUCT, EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS 
All work product, equipment or materials created or purchased under this contract belong to 

STATE and must be delivered to STATE at STATE'S request upon termination of this contract.  

CONTRACTOR agrees that all materials prepared under this contract are "works for hire" within 

the meaning of the copyright laws of the United States and assigns to STATE all rights and 

interests CONTRACTOR may have in the materials it prepares under this contract, including any 

right to derivative use of the material.  CONTRACTOR shall execute all necessary documents to 

enable STATE to protect its rights under this section. 

 
20. INDEPENDENT ENTITY 
CONTRACTOR is an independent entity under this contract and is not a STATE employee for 

any purpose, including the application of the Social Security Act, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the 

Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the North Dakota Unemployment Compensation Law and the 

North Dakota Workers’ Compensation Act.  CONTRACTOR retains sole and absolute discretion 

in the manner and means of carrying out CONTRACTOR’S activities and responsibilities under 

this contract, except to the extent specified in this contract. 

 
21. NONDISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and policies, 

including those relating to nondiscrimination, accessibility and civil rights. CONTRACTORS 

agrees to timely file all required reports, make required payroll deductions, and timely pay all taxes 

and premiums owed, including sales and use taxes and unemployment compensation and workers' 

compensation premiums. CONTRACTOR shall have and keep current at all times during the term 

of this contract all licenses and permits required by law. 

 
22. STATE AUDIT 
All records, regardless of physical form, and the accounting practices and procedures of 

CONTRACTOR relevant to this contract are subject to examination by the North Dakota State 

Auditor or the Auditor’s designee.  CONTRACTOR will maintain all such records for at least 

three years following completion of this contract. 

 
23. PREPAYMENT 
STATE will not make any advance payments before performance by CONTRACTOR under this 

contract. 

 
24. TAXPAYER ID 
CONTRACTOR’S federal employer ID number is:  _____________________. 

 
25. PAYMENT OF TAXES BY STATE 
State is not responsible for and will not pay local, state, or federal taxes.  State sales tax 

exemption number is E-2001, and certificates will be furnished upon request by the purchasing 

agency. 

 



 

32 

 

26. EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTRACT 
This contract is not effective until fully executed by both parties. 
 

 

CONTRACTOR STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

Acting through its 

 
(agency)  

 

By:    By:    

Title:    Title:    

Date:    Date:    
 
 



 

33 

 

Appendix B – Non-Disclosure Agreement 
 

This Non- Disclosure Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made this ___ day of ________ 2010, 

by and between _________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "the OFFEROR ") and the 

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (hereinafter referred to as "NDPERS").  

OFFEROR warrants and represents that it intends to submit a Proposal in response to the 

NDPERS RFP, the Request for Proposals for Group Life and AD&D Benefits Plan.  In order 

for the OFFEROR to submit a Proposal, it will be necessary for NDPERS to provide the 

OFFEROR with access to certain confidential information including, but not limited to, 

demographic and identifying information on NDPERS active and retiree population and plan 

utilization data. All such information provided by NDPERS shall be considered Confidential 

Information regardless of the form, format, or media upon which or in which such information 

is contained or provided, regardless of whether it is oral, written, electronic, or any other form, 

and regardless of whether the information is marked as “Confidential Information.” As a 

condition for its receipt and access to the Confidential Information described in Section III.1 

of the RFP, OFFEROR agrees as follows: 

1. OFFEROR will not copy, disclose, publish, release, transfer, disseminate or use for 

any purpose in any form any Confidential Information received under Section III, 

except in connection with the preparation of its Proposal.  

2. The OFFEROR shall agree that all confidential, proprietary or trade secret information 

of the Incumbent shall be used only for the express purpose of formulating a proposal 

for NDPERS. 

3. Each employee or agent of the OFFEROR who receives or has access to the 

Confidential Information shall execute a copy of this Agreement and the OFFEROR 

shall provide originals of such executed Agreements to NDPERS. Each employee or 

agent of the OFFEROR who signs this Agreement shall be subject to the same terms, 

conditions, requirements and liabilities set forth herein that are applicable to the 

OFFEROR and the OFFEROR shall be liable for any violations by any employees or 

agents who are provided or given access to Confidential Information. 

4. OFFEROR shall destroy the Confidential Information, including any copies, 

remaining in its possession within five business days of NDPERS’s notice of a 

recommended award in connection with this procurement. If the OFFEROR does not 

submit a Proposal, the OFFEROR shall return the Confidential Information, including 

any copies, to the NDPERS Purchasing and Contracts Manager identified in the RFP, 

Section III.2, on or before the due date for Proposals.  

5. OFFEROR acknowledges that the disclosure of the Confidential Information may 

cause irreparable harm to NDPERS and agrees that NDPERS may obtain an injunction 

to prevent the disclosure, copying, or other impermissible use of the Confidential 

Information. NDPERS’s rights and remedies hereunder are cumulative and NDPERS 

expressly reserves any and all rights, remedies, claims and actions that it may have 

now or in the future to protect the Confidential Information and/or to seek damages for 

the OFFEROR’S failure to comply with the requirements of this Agreement.  

6. In the event NDPERS suffers any losses, damages, liabilities, expenses, or costs 

(including, by way of example only, attorneys’ fees and disbursements) that are 

attributable, in whole or in part to any failure by the OFFEROR or any employee or 

agent of the OFFEROR to comply with the requirements of this Agreement, 



 

34 

 

OFFEROR and such employees and agents of OFFEROR shall hold harmless and 

indemnify NDPERS and the State of North Dakota from and against any such losses, 

damages, liabilities, expenses, and/or costs. 

7. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Dakota.  The 

OFFEROR consents to personal jurisdiction in North Dakota state courts, and 

exclusive venue shall be in Burleigh County, North Dakota. 

8. The individual signing below warrants and represents that they are fully authorized to 

bind the OFFEROR to the terms and conditions specified in this Agreement. If signed 

below by an individual employee or agent of the OFFEROR under Section 3 of this 

Agreement, such individual acknowledges that a failure to comply with the 

requirements specified in this Agreement may result in personal liability. 

Offeror: 
 

By:  

 Signature 

    

Print Name:  

Title:  

Address:  

 

OFFEROR’S EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS WHO WILL BE GIVEN ACCESS TO 

THE CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

 

Printed Name and Address of 

Individual Agent 

Employee (E) 

or Agent (A) 
Signature Date 

    

    

    

    

    

Please provide the name and delivery address for the individual who is to 

receive Attachment E: Confidential Documents. 

Offeror:  

Name:  

Title:  

Address:  

Phone Number:  

 



 

35 

 

Appendix C – Current Life and AD&D Summary Booklet 
 
See document labeled as “Appendix C”



 

36 

 

Appendix D – Rate/Experience History 
 

Premium & Claim Report:   1/1/2008 thru 12/31/2008     

Coverage Average Lives 

Average 

Volume 

Reported 

Claims  

Claim 

Interest 

Conversion 

Charges 

Change 

in 

Waiver 

Reserves 

Due 

Premium 

Basic Active 18,097 $23,526,425 $39,000 $101 $14,814 $259 $56,227 

Basic Retired 2,983 $3,878,442 $161,200 $620 $0 $0 $153,277 

Active AD&D 18,097 $23,526,425 $2,600 $9 $0 $0 $4,520 

Retired AD&D 2,983 $3,878,442 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,069 

Optional 10,583 $861,338,225 $2,131,200 $5,808 $0 $29,173 $2,025,057 

Optional 

AD&D 10,583 $861,338,225 $29,400 $99 $0 $0 $186,259 

Dependent 10,498 $185,680,833 $312,000 $1,309 $51,436   $468,296 

Total     $2,675,400 $7,946 $66,250 $29,432 $2,894,704 

  

      

  

Premium & Claim Report:   1/1/2009 thru 12/31/2009     

Coverage Average Lives 

Average 

Volume 

Reported 

Claims  

Claim 

Interest 

Conversion 

Charges 

Change 

in 

Waiver 

Reserves 

Due 

Premium 

Basic Active 18,263 $23,742,442 $24,700 $44 $2,210 -$550 $56,799 

Basic Retired 3,002 $3,902,925 $161,200 $215 $0 $0 $153,921 

Active AD&D 18,255 $23,742,442 $1,300 $7 $0 $0 $4,565 

Retired AD&D 3,002 $3,902,925 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,074 

Optional 10,716 $911,223,058 $1,289,200 $2,135 $48,290 $4,280 $2,038,868 

Optional 

AD&D 10,716 $911,223,058 $0 $0 $0 $0 $218,693 

Dependent 10,838 $198,659,583 $860,000 $920 $0 $0 $483,840 

Total     $2,336,400 $3,322 $50,500 $3,730 $2,957,761 

  

      

  

Premium & Claim Report:   1/1/2010 thru 11/30/2010     

Coverage Average Lives 

Average 

Volume 

Reported 

Claims  

Claim 

Interest 

Conversion 

Charges 

Change 

in 

Waiver 

Reserves 

Due 

Premium 

Basic Active 18,458 $23,994,809 $28,600 $29 $1,957 -$36 $52,531 

Basic Retired 3,005 $3,906,973 $166,075 $119 $0 $0 $141,582 

Active AD&D 18,458 $23,994,809 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,223 

Retired AD&D 3,005 $3,906,973 $0 $0 $0 $0 $983 

Optional 10,807 $952,584,400 $1,856,200 $1,338 $110,254 -$36,302 $2,026,840 

Optional 

AD&D 10,807 $952,584,400 $0 $0 $0 $0 $209,310 

Dependent 11,074 $209,741,818 $531,000 $272 $15,000 $0 $480,442 

Total     $2,581,875 $1,757 $127,210 -$36,338 $2,915,911 

Data is unaudited and subject to change. 

      Dependent volume is spouse only.  Dependent lives include spouse and children. 

    
 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb       
 
DATE:   December 15, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  Asset/Liability Study 
 
 
Representative from Callan Associates will be at the next Board meeting to review the 

proposed asset allocation framework for our asset/liability study.  Our investment committee 

is meeting Friday, December 17th to continue its review of the proposed framework.  

Previously the committee has met with the TFFR board to review it as well.  The committee 

will present its conclusions and suggestions at the Board meeting.  

 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb       
 
DATE:   December 15, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  Retirement Plan 
 
 
Executive Budget 
 
On December 8th we submitted Bill #53 for consideration this session.  The following is the 
Executive Recommendation for the retirement program (which is what #53 provides): 
 

Area Executive Recommendation 

Retirement The executive recommendation funds the retirement contributions bill 
endorsed by the interim Employee Benefits Committee. The bill 
proposes an increase in contributions to the retirement system of 2.0 
percent on January 1, 2012 and another 2.0 percent increase on 
January 1, 2013. Employees would pay 1.0 percent of the increased 
contribution and the employer, the State of North Dakota, 
would pay 1.0 percent of the contribution increase. 

 
With this we go into the Legislative Session with: 
 

1. The State Employee Compensation Commission recommended Bill #53. 
2. The Legislative Employee Benefits committee gave Bill #53 a “Favorable 

Recommendation 
3. The Executive Budget is funding and recommending Bill #53. 

 
RIO Administrative Bill 
 
The Retirement and Investment Office has requested an additional FTE to assist the State 
Investment Officer.  The Executive Budget approved the request and is recommending it the 
Legislature.  Does PERS wish to: 
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



Page | 2 
 

1. Support the request as well (that is I would testify in favor at their budget hearing) 
2. Take a neutral position on the request 
3. Oppose the request.   

 
I am seeking your direction on how you would like PERS to respond or participate in this 
matter.   
   
 
Staff Recommendation: #1 
Defined Contribution Bill 
 
It is likely that the defined contribution that was reviewed during the session will be 
submitted to the legislature.  Attachment #1 is the considerations we previously discussed 
on the bill and this was given to the interim committee for its considerations however one 
additional issue (Political Subdivision Cost Shift) has been added and one issue has been 
deleted relating to Judges, law enforcement plans and Highway Patrol Plans which the 
sponsor agreed to remove. 
 
Does PERS wish to: 
 

1. Support the bill 
2. Take a neutral position as we did during the interim but offer the attached comments 

as we did in the interim and highlight the technical review by Segal 
3. Oppose the bill 

 
Staff Recommendation: #2 
PERS Administrative Bill 
 
At the last several meeting we have talked about the contribution rate for political 
subdivisions for the main system and the law enforcement plan.  As a result, I went back 
and closely reviewed our statute and have asked Aaron to review it as well.  I discovered 
one issue relating to NDCC 54-52-02.1 (3) which states: 
 
3. Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, a political subdivision of this 
state not currently participating in the public employees retirement system may not 
become a participant in the retirement system until an actuarial study is performed 
under the direction of the board to calculate the required employer contribution. The 
required employer contribution must be an amount determined sufficient to fund the 
normal cost and amortize any past service liability over a period not to exceed thirty 
years as determined by the board. Any fees incurred in performing the actuarial 
study must be paid for by the political subdivision in a manner determined by the 
board. 
 
This subsection of the statute was changed when the law enforcement system was created 
in 2003.  Unlike other bills this bill was developed during the session and did not go through 
the same level of analysis. That is it did not go through the interim committee before the 
session.  Also this bill centered on creating the law enforcement plan and the actuarial work 
required to do that.  In reviewing the legislative history, neither Aaron nor I can see that any 
consideration or note was made concerning the change in this subsection.  What changed 



Page | 3 
 

was the addition of the normal cost provision to this subsection.  In the past it was only 
concerned with past service liability and since no one joined the system with a past service 
liability, it was never applied.  Also at the time, as near as I can recall, it was felt that since 
other sections of the bill specifically set the rate, this would not apply anyway. Consequently 
this was not noted or considered in any of the reviews, assessments or testimony.  When I 
asked Aaron to review this he indicated that is not the case, that is this section prevails over 
other sections of the statute. So what does all this mean to us: 
 

1. This section says we should be doing an actuarial analysis to determine the normal 
cost and past service liability cost for any political subdivision joining the plan.  We do 
not do that.  

2. If we did, it would raise numerous administrative problems since we would have a 
unique rate for each subdivision, we would likely need to do a specific actuarial 
valuation for each unit each year and vary the rate for each.  The administrative cost 
for this would be high and the additional actuarial fees would be high. 
 

Since we are now aware of this I would recommend that we add an amendment to our 
administrative bill to correct this provision.  If you agree I will discuss this with the Chair of 
the Legislative Employee Benefits Committee to see if it can be added at this time.     
 
Staff Recommendation:  Seek a change is statute 



PERS Analysis of Comparability and Equity Issues Related to LC #80 and 
Considerations 

December 12, 2010 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Issues Description Considerations 
Cost 

Estimate3 

Survivor 
Benefit 

The DB plan provides for survivor benefits.  Four options are 
provided including a lifetime benefit of 50% of the accrued 
benefit payable to the spouse for the remainder of their life.  
The DC spouse benefit is the account balance.  
Consequently the DC plan does not provide as sound of a 
benefit for spouses for employees without a significant 
account balance.  For many employers that is offset since 
they provide their employees employer paid life insurance 
that will help the spouse.  In North Dakota we provide 
$1,300 in coverage but since the DB plan had a sound 
spouse benefit this was not as critical 

An alternative to providing survivor benefits 
in the retirement plan could be to expand 
the employer provided life insurance 
coverage from the existing $1,300 to a 
higher amount such as $50,000.  This would 
equal about $300 a month for 25 years or 
about $460 for 12 years 

$5.1 Million1 

 

Disability 

The PERS DB plan has a disability retirement benefit of 25% 
of final average salary.  The DC plan only benefit is that 
account balance which for many members unless they are 
older with many years of service would not be adequate.  
Some employers have employer paid disability that insures 
against this contingency 

An alternative to providing this in the DB 
plan would be to add an employer paid 
disability insurance as a benefit for state 
employees to offset the reduction in the 
disability retirement benefit 

$1.6 Million1 

Adequacy & 
Equity 

1. PERS had Segal do a study of the adequacy of the 
retirement benefit in the existing PERS defined 
contribution plan.  The finding was that for most of the 
DC members the projected benefit was less then 50% of 
the PERS DB benefit.  To make the systems comparable 
it was noted that contribution needed to more then 
doubled. 

2. PERS and TFFR have provided essentially the same level 
of benefits to their members, that is both system have a 
“2%” multiplier.  If the plans are changed to a DC plan 

Based upon the study and to provide a 
similar equity to the two plans as it is today 
the tow plans could have the same 
contribution level.  The DC analysis appears 
to show that 16% to 20% contribution could 
provide a similar benefit.  Therefore 
considerations could be given to the PERS 
plan at the same level of contribution as 
TFFR – 16.5% 

$77 million2 



PERS Analysis of Comparability and Equity Issues Related to LC #80 and 
Considerations 

December 12, 2010 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Issues Description Considerations 
Cost 

Estimate3 
the benefit will largely be passed on contributions.  The 
existing TFFR contribution is about 17% and the existing 
PERS contribution is about 8%.  To maintain equity in 
benefits between the two systems PERS DC contribution 
need to be increased  
 

Investor 
Education 

In a DC plan the individual member is responsible for setting 
up their investment plan.  In the DB plan that responsibility 
is with the PERS Board and the SIB.  In the DC plan the 
members ability to retiree and the type of retirement they 
will be afford is directly related to how effective they are in 
establishing and maintaining their investment strategy in 
and age appropriate manner. 

To provide DC member the resources to 
manage their investments consideration 
could be given to allowing  each members 
up to 4 hours per year of employer work 
time to meet with their investment advisor, 
participate in investment education 
meetings and view on line education video’s 

$1.9 Million2 
(this is a soft 
dollar cost) 

Savings 
Incentive 

The PERS plan added the PEP program to its plan design in 
the late 90’s.   This provision enhances the portability of the 
plan and also provides an incentive for members to engage 
in supplemental retirement savings in the deferred comp 
program by matching their contribution in the DB plan with 
increased vesting in the employer contribution.   This 
program has been very successful and since its initiation 
supplemental retirement savings has increased.  The 
proposed DC plan does not have a similar incentive. 

Since the DC plan does have a similar 
incentive an alternative would be to provide 
a direct match to employees participating in 
supplemental retirement savings 

$37 Million1 
 

Retiree 
Increases 

The states present process for providing retiree increases is 
Ad Hoc adjustments.  That is if the fund can support an 
increase it is considered by the Legislature and Governor 
and if passed will then take effect.  Given the retirement 
plans existing funded status it is unlikely that it will be able 
to support any increases for many years.  However if new 

If the DC plan is passed a new method for 
considering and funding retiree increases 
may need to be considered.  One option 
would be set up a separate funding 
mechanism.  An example would be to put  a 
1% contribution of all covered payroll into 

$9.3 Million  
 



PERS Analysis of Comparability and Equity Issues Related to LC #80 and 
Considerations 

December 12, 2010 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Issues Description Considerations 
Cost 

Estimate3 
employees are moved to a DC Plan it will insure that the 
fund will likely never to able to give retiree  a retiree 
increase due to the continued decline in covered payroll.   

the plan for such increases (this would need 
a study to determine what would be 
appropriate) 

Administrati
on and plan 

design 

1. The PERS Business system will need to be modified to 
provide for the different eligibility procedures 

2. The implementation is early and may be a challenge  
3. Not clear what should happen to a member of the DB 

plan who returns to service as a new employee after the 
DC bill would be implemented 

1. Update the business system code 
2. The implementation date should be 

moved to Jan 2012 
3. Have a returning member stay in the 

Hybrid Plan to maintain continuity of 
retirement plan 

1. $40,500 
general fund 
appropriation 
required 

2. No Cost 
3. Minimal cost 

Political 
Subdivision 

cost shift 

If the state’s contribution is not set to met the actuarial 
required contribution each year the unpaid contribution 
will cost shifted to the political subdivisions 

The NDCC could be changed to allow the 
states contribution to be set based upon the 
actuarial required contributions each year 

The states 
contribution will 
vary and may be 
more then 
appropriated 
causing agency 
budgets to 
overrun thus 
requiring interim 
adjustments 

Assumptions: 10,800 PERS State FTE & $926,151,000 biennium payroll 

1. Assumes the benefit is provided to all PERS employees at the same time, except for the life insurance which assumes all state employees including 
Higher Education.  If only applied to DC plan members it would start lower and then grow as more members joined the plan. 

2. Would be the full cost at full implementation, that is when all employees are in the DC system. 
3. All cost estimates are very preliminary and are only provided to give a very general  estimate.  Full cost is shown so it can be factored down based 

upon estimated participation 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb       
 
DATE:   December 15, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  Segal Contract 
 
 
The contract with Segal for actuarial work is scheduled to go to bid this year with the new 
contract being effective July 1, 2011.  It was originally scheduled to go to bid last year but 
we extended it so we would have the continuity of the same actuary during the discussion of 
the challenges facing the retirement plans and the bill review process before the Legislative 
Employee Benefits Committee.   
 
I am coming again to request extending this contract for one more year.  Part of the reason 
is the same as last time.  However, more importantly I would like to extend it for one more 
year for the 2011 valuation.  This year will be first year that we will be drawing down all the 
actuarial data off our new business system.  It would helpful if we had the same actuary 
because if data issues do arise, it would easier to isolate problems.  If we had a new 
actuary, the problem could be at their end since they are new or it could be at our end due 
to the new system.  We would have to investigate both.  If we have the same actuary and 
problems arise, we have one less variable in the process.   
 
If you approve extending the Segal contract, I would ask them to prepare an extension 
proposal (with rates and terms) for your final consideration in January. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Request an extension proposal from Segal for one more year     
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Deb & Bryan       
 
DATE:   October 13, 2010  
 
SUBJECT:  Deferred Compensation Investment Options Summary 
 
 
 
The 2010-2011 NDPERS Summary of Investment Options for the Deferred Compensation 
Plan is now available on the NDPERS web site.   
 
The booklet contains provider contact information and all the investment options for the 457 
plan.  There are currently nine providers and over three hundred funds to choose from.    
 
The link to the booklet is: 
http://www.nd.gov/ndpers/forms-and-publications/publications/investment-options.pdf 
 
If you have any questions, we will be available at the NDPERS Board meeting. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

http://www.nd.gov/ndpers/forms-and-publications/publications/investment-options.pdf�









	Agenda
	Audit Report
	PERSLink Update
	Prime Therapeutics
	Health Plan
	Life Insurance RFP
	Asset Liability Study
	Retirement Plan
	Segal Contract
	Investment Options
	Audit Committee Minutes



